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In Custody Death of Clarence Wilson

This report will serve as the summary of the In Custody Death (ICD)
investigation of inmate Clarence Wilson that occurred on 08/29/17 at 2255 hours
at the Milwaukes County Jail located at 94% N 9th Street in the City of
Milwzukee.

Wilson had been assigned te Pod 3B, Cell #43, at the Milwaukee County Jail when
he began to guffer from an unknown medical emergency. Wilson was treated by
jail and medical staff in the pod and later transported to the Jail Medical
clinic where he was declared deceased by the Milwaukee Fire Department.

The Waukesha County Sheriff’'s Department (WKS0O) was contacted and requested to
respond as the lead investigative agency per Miliwaukee County Sheriff's
Department (MCS0) department policy.

WKSO responded with Captain Patrick Esser (Supervisor in Charge) and the
following Detectives:

Detective Aarcn Hoppe- Lead Investigator
Detective Alex 0'Tocle- Co-Lead Investigator
Detective Marshall Jensen

Detective Jody Kropp

Investigators from the Milwaukee County District Attorney's CQffice were present
as well:

DA Investlgator Anna Linden

DA Investigator Matthew Gibson

Milwaukee County Medical Examiner Office Representative {ME'S office):
Hillary Donald
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Additional assistance was provided during the investigation by the following
WKSO Detectives:

Detective Robert Wepfer
Detective Ross Seitz
Detective Margaret Herrmann
Detective Christopher Xohl

Upon arriving at the Milwaukee County Jail, Captain Patrick Esser along with
Detectives Hoppe, O'Toole, Jensen, and Kropp met with Deputy Inspector Aaron
Dobson, Lt. Steven Haw, Lt. Tricia Carlson, Detective JeodAnn Donner, and
Detective Andrew Halstead from the Milwaukee County Sheriff's Department (MCSO},
Milwaukee County District Attorney Investigator's Linden and Gibson, and Hillary
Donald from the Milwaukee County Medical Bxaminer's Office.

During the meeting all members in attendance were briefed on the following
information:

Wilson had been taken into custody by the Milwaukee Police Department on
08/28/17 at 2046 hours for a Probation Violation after a urinalysis test
conducted at his residence resulted in a positive indication for cocaine.
Wilson was transported from his residence to Columbia St. Mary's hospital after
complaining of arm pain during the arrest. Upon being medically cleared from
Columbia St. Mary's at 0025 hours on 08/28/17, Wilson was transported to
Milwaukee Police Department District #3 at 0056 hours to complete the bocking
process. Wilson was then trangported to the Milwaukee County Jail arriving at
0200 hours. Wilson was boocked and assigned to Pod 3B Cell #43 at 1025 hours on
08/25/17. ’

Near the end of the second shift (1400-2230) on 08/29/17, Correctiocnal Officer
Cristal Jackscn called for an unknown medical emergency over her jail issued
radio at 2156 hours. Wilson was immediately provided medical treatment and was
transported to the Jail Medical Clinic while awaiting transport to a local
hoapital by EMS for further wedical treabtment. During this time, staff
determined that Wilson was not breathing and did not have a pulse. CPR was
administered and the use of an AED was attempted by staff until the Milwaukee
Fire Department arrived on scene who continued resuscitation efforts in the
Medical Clinic. After consulting with a physician at Froedtert Hospital, Wilson
wasg proncunced deceased at 2255 hours on 08/29/17.

MCSO staff stated that there was no ocbvious injuries to Wilson and there were no
concerng reported by jail or medical staff prior to the medical emergency.
Wilson was in a single person cell at the time of this incident and the pod was
in lockdown statug at the time of the emergency. M3CO Supervisgory staff
informed WKSO Detectives that all MCSO and medical staff members involved in the
incident were still in the jail and were walting to be interviewed.

Surveillance Video

Surveillance video was later obtained from the following locations: Officer
Bradford's body camera {Arresting Officer on 08/28/17), Milwaukee Police
Department District #3 Sally port, District #3 Fingerprint room, Digtrict #3
Booking area, District #3 Adult Cells holding area, Milwaukee County Jail (MCJ)
Sally port, MCJ Pre-Book and search area, MCJT Booking area, MCJ Pod 3B, MCJI Pod
3B Vestibule Clinic, MCJT Pod 3B gym, MCJ Hallway from 3rd floor elevator to Pod
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3B.

Crime Scenes- Pod 3B and Medical Clinic overview

WKSO Detectives requested to observe the area where Wilson wag housed. WKSO
Detectives Hoppe, O'Toole, and Jensen along with DA Investigators Linden and
Gibson, AND Medical Examiner Staff were escorted te Pod 3B and a review of the
housing and security system was conducted. Wilson's cell had been secured and
had crime gcene tape along the edges of the door.

Pod 3B and cell #43 overview

Detective Kropp proceeded to take overall photos of the pod and the exterior of
Wilson's cell prior to entering. After Detective Kropp had completed taking the
necessary photos, entry to the cell was made by Detective Kropp and Investigator
Linden. I did enter the cell and reviewed the contents and set up of the
interior of the cell. I did not cbserve anything suspiciocus nor did there
appear to be anything out of the ordinary. Detective Kropp confirmed that the
sink in Wilson's cell had running cold water. It was learned later in the
invegtigation that toilet is on a2 timed flushing system and if somesone attempts
to flush the toilet multiple times prior to the original activation of the
flushing system it will shut off to avoid inmates flooding their cells. Thisg
would be the reason that Detective Kropp was unable to activate the flushing
feature as noted in his supplement. Hillary Donald (ME'S8 Office} was able to
later confirm that the toilet was in fact able to flush and it does appear that
there was no issues with the plumbing or access to water in Wilson'a cell.
Detective Kropp documented the items in Wilson's cell, which consisted mostly of
jail issued property and a left over jail issued bag lunch with remnants of food
inside of it. Detective Kropp did confirm that the intercom in the cell wag
functicning properly by activating it while he was inside of the cell. Once it
was activated, Detective Kropp heard the audible alarm coming from the Officer
Station terminal ensuring it was functioning at the time. '

There did not appear to be anything suspicious or out of the crdinary in
Wilson's cell according to Detective Kropp or Hillary Donald.

Medical Clinic

Afterwards, staff was escorted to the Medical Clinic where Wilson's body was
gtill located. Detective Kropp again took overall photos of the scene as
Detectives observed the area. Wilson was lying on his back just a few feet
inside the main entry door teo the clinic. Wilson's feet were facing towards the
door leading to the clinic with his head facing the hallway of the clinie,

There was an AED nearby along with a RIP restraint belt that appeared to be cut
lyving near Wilson.

Interviews
At that time it was decided that Detectives would begin interviewing staff

involved, while Detective Kropp completed processing both scenes {Pod 3B and the’

Medical Clinie) and collecting evidence along with staff from the Milwaukee
County Medical Examiner's Office: Video surveillance from the Milwaukee County
Jail was later obtained and reviewed for records purposes.

Detectives from WKSO and MCSO conducted interviews with MCSC jail staff, inmates
located in Pod 3R, and with medical staff who were involved.

The following list of MCSO jail and medical staff were interviewed on 08/30/17
along with the Detective assigned:
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Correctional Staff
Lieutenant Steve Haw- Det. Hoppe WKSO
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Liesutenant Michael Stevens-
Lieutenant Julie Shanahan-

Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correcticnal
Correcticnal
Correcticnal
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional
Correctional

Medical Staff
* RN Samantha Markwardt- Det. Hoppe WKSO
* RN Sheba Lopez- Det. Donner MCS0

Det. Halstead MCSO

Det. Domnner MCS0

Officer Cristal Jackson- Det. Hoppe WKSO
Cfficer Yoshiette Hamilton- Det. Hoppe WKSO
Cfficer Benjamin Giese- Det. Hoppe WKSO
Cfficer Cory Jensen- Det. O'Toole WKSO
Cfficer Trevor Trello- Det. O'Toole WKSO
Officer Kiarxi McBroom- Det. OfToole WKSO
officer Michael Saporito- Det. Jensen WKSO
Officer Gregory Walker Det. Jensen WKSO
Officer- Rebecca Ehrman- Det. Jensen WKSO
Officer Anthony Emanule- Det. Jensen WKSO
Officer Jacquise Payne- Det. Donner MCSO
Officer Andrew Hynst- Det. Donner MCSO
Officer Samantha Taylor- Det. Halstead MCSO
Officer Amika Avery- Det, Halstead MCSO
Officer LaCinda Sloan- Det. Halstead MCSO
Officer Patrice Wright-Perry- Det. Halstead MCSO
Officer Devin O'Donnell- Lt. Carison MCSO
Officer Brian Wenzel- L&, Carlson MCSO
Qfficer Dashyla Ellioctt- Lt. Carlscon MCS0
Officer Shondel Thompson- Det. Donner MCSO
Officer Matthew McCoy- Det. Donner MCSO

Summary of Interview with Correctional Officer Cristal Jackson ASN to Pod 3B:

The first interview conducted was with Correctional Officer Cristal Jackson.

The interview was conducted in the Administration Conference room located at the
Milwaukee County Jaill. DA Investigator Linden was present during the interview
which was recorded. During the interview C.0. Jackson stated that she was
assigned tce Second shift 1400-2230 hours and was assigned to inmate housing unit
3B during her shift on 08/28/17. C.0. Jackszon stated that it was a routine
ghift and she relieved C.0. Benjamin Giese who briefed her on one inmate that
had been removed from the pod for disciplinary reasons and one other inmate who
had been suffering from hercin withdrawal, neither of which were Wilson. C.O.
Jackscn then informed us she had no interaction with Wilson prior to the medical
emergency call and was unable to even recall cbserving Wilson during the evening
since "older inmates usually keep to themselves". C.0. Jackson began the
process of locking the inmates down for the evening at 2053 hours, which
congiste of lining up the inmates and confirming wristbands and housing unit
cards wmatch. Shortly after securing the inmates in the pod at 205% hours, a
nurse arrived in the pod and conducted med pass tc several inmates. C.0.
Jackson admits that she was supposed to log the nurse in and out of the pod in
her activity log but believed she forgot to log the nurse cut of the pod, which
would have been proper protoccl. C.0. Jackson admitted to felling rushed and
also received five new inmates at 2115 hours. C.0. Jackscon logged the new
inmates into the computer system and exited her pod at 2126 hours. (.0, Jackson
admitted that she is supposed to turn over control of her ped to floor control
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prior to exiting her pod since there would net be an officer inside the ped to
answer any emergency calls, but acknowledged that she did not complete this
task. (.0. Jackson gave no reason for not turning over control of the pod to
floor control and stated she simply did not do so. C.0. Jackson then completed
her paperwork and spoke with 0Officer Shondel Thompson at floor control before
entering her pod at 2155 hours to conduct her final check. Upon entering, C.0.
Jackson described being immediately alerted by all of the inmates that cell 43
{Wilgson's cell) needed help. C.0. Jackson rushed to Wilson's cell and cbserved
Wilson lying ont his bunk yelling "I can't breathe®. (.0. Jackson then called a
medical emergency for Wilson and went back to the Officer Station to allow other
Officers entry inte the pod. C.0. Jackson stated that several Officers
responded and once additional staff were on scene, she unlocked Wilson's cell
door and observed while Wilson was provided treatment by jail and medical staff.
C.0. Jackson recalled Wilson moaning and velling "help me" during this time.
C.0. Jackson did not provide any other assistance during this time, due to
monitoring the Officer Station and controlling the doors in the pods. C.0O.
Jackson stated that as she returned to her Officer Station she observed that
*all of the cother inmates" emergency intercoms were activated on her computer
indicating she had not turned over control of the pod to floor control prior to
exiting her pod at 2126 hours. C€.C. Jackson again gave no reason for not
turning over control, indicating she is aware that it is MCSC policy that
control should be turned over when noboedy is in the pod monitoring the inmates
while they are secured in their cells. CC.0. Jackson alsc repeated that she had
no interaction with Wilson throughout the evening and was never made aware of
any medical problems Wilson may have been suffering from.
This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Jackson.

Summary of interview with Lieutenant Steven Haw
Lt. Haw was interviewed next and was interviewed in the Jail Administraticn
Conference rcom located at the Milwaukee County Jail on the moyxning of 08/30/17.
The interview was recorded with Lt. Haw's permission. Lt. Haw gtated that he
iz assigned to gecond shift, 1330-2200 hours, and had been working the night of
08/29/17. Lt. Haw stated that he was assigned to the Bocking area and was
preparing to end his ghift when he heard C.0. Jackson call for a medical
emergency in Pod 3B. Lt. Haw regponded and observed Wilson in his cell. Lt.
Haw noted that Wilson was moving his armsg and legs but he could not hear what
Wilson was saying. Once additional Correctional Officers arrived, the door to
Wilson's cell was opened and he was placed on the floor in front of his cell.
Lt. Haw was still not aware of the reason for the medical call but due to Wilson
flailing his arms and leys, wrist restraints were placed on him and staff was
holding down his legs while RN Markwardt began her initial assessment of Wilson.
Lt. Haw described Wilson as "thrashing around during this time". Lt. Haw dig
overhear RN Markwardt state that Wilson's "Pulge Ox was 72". At 2208 hours RN
Markwardt requested the Milwaukee Fire Department (MFD) be called to transport
Wilson to a hospital. Wilson was then placed in a wheelchair and trangported to
the Medical Clinic for treatment while they awaited the arrival of MFD. Upon
arrival at the Medical Clinic, they realized the wheel chair was toc large to
fit through the doorway. Lt. Haw then retrieved z chair and Wilson was
transferred from the wheelchair to that chair and placed in the waiting area of
the clinic. Lt. Haw stated that they realized that Wilson had become
unresponsive. Staff then confirmed that Wilson was not breathing and did not
have a pulse. Wilson was then placed cn the floor and gtaff, along with RN
Markwardt began CPR and attempted to utilize the AED, but the AED gave a "No
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Shock advised" response. At 2218 Hours the MFD arrived and took over
resuscitation efforts. At 2255 hours the MFD declared Wilson deceased and
ceased all resuscitation efforts. Lt. Haw stated that Wilson appeared "out of
it" during the transport to the clinic but he did over hear Wilson say "Help or
Help me" during that time. Lt. Haw stated that he did not have any contact with
Wilson prior to this incident and was unaware of the reason for the original
call for a medical emergency. Lt. Haw also stated that he did not have concerns
with how staff responded or any of the treatment issued to Wilson.

This concludes the summary of the interview with Lt. Steven Haw.

Summary of Interview with RN Samantha Markwardt

RN Samantha Markwardt was interviewed next and was interviewed in the Jail
Administration Conference room located at the Milwaukee County Jail on the
morning of 08/30/17. The interview was recorded with RN Markwardt's permission.
RN Markwardt is employed with Armor Correctional, who is contracted by
Milwaukee County to provide medical care at the MCJ. RN Markwardt is a nursing
supervisor and is assigned to the 1800-0600 hours shift. RN Markwardt stated
that she had learned that Wilson had gone through the pre-booking process, which
is where a determination is made as to whether or not accept an inmate or
decline entry to the jail after conducting a brief review of the arrest and
health summary of the individual being brought to the jail. If the individual
is cleared from the pre-booking process and initial medical assessment, they are
then accepted entry to the jail where they then complete the full booking
process. Wilson was cleared from the pre-booking process and was accepted to
complete the remainder of the booking process on the morning of 08/29/17 and did
not indicate any health issues at the time. RN Markwardt later stated that
staff is familiar with Wilson, since he has in the past, provided Jail Medical
different information during medical screening at the jail. One example
provided showed that during one incarceration and medical screening, Wilson
informed staff he was and at a later incarceration and medical
screening he denied be&. RN Markwardt stated that she did not have
any contact with Wilson on 08/29/17 until she responded to the medical emergency
call made by C.0. Jackson. RN Markwardt arrived in Pod 3B and awaited the
arrival of other Officers before the cell door was opened. RN Markwardt
believed Wilson was leaning on the door because he appeared to stumble out of
the cell when the door was opened. Wilson informed her that he "felt like he
was dying" and appeared to have difficulty breathing. Wilson informed RN
Markwardt that he has asthma but RN Markwardt was aware that Wilson had never
reported that before. RN Markwardt was able to obtain a pulse-ox level from
Wilson which was 72%. After obtaining the reading, RN Markwardt went to the
Officer's station and immediately contacted the On Call

Nurse Practitioner per protocol. RN Markwardt was advised to immediately begin
a breathing treatment on Wilson and have him transported to a local hospital for
further treatment. RN Markwardt then instructed Lt. Haw to call for an
ambulance to have Wilson transported and also to retrieve a wheelchair. RN
Markwardt observed as staff carried Wilson down from the upper tier to the lower
tier and into a wheelchair and eventually to the doors leading to the Medical
Clinie. RN Markwardt felt the MCSO staff was very professional and went to
extreme measures in the initial care for Wilson and acted in a safe manner when
carrying him down the stairs from the upper to the lower tier.

Upon arriving at the clinic, RN Markwardt began preparing for the breathing
treatment when she was advised by MCSO staff that Wilson was now unresponsive
and possibly pulseless and non-breathing (PNB). RN Markwardt came over and
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confirmed that Wilson was PNBR and was assisted by MCSO gtaff in lowering Wilson
to the floor. RN Markwardt immediately began CPR with the assistance of MCSOQ
staff until the MPD arrived a short time later. RN Markwardt also acknowledged
that there was an attempt to use a jail AED but "no shock advised" was the
respense or prompt staff received.

RN Markwardt did not have any contact with Wilson on 08/29/17 prior to the
medical emergency call and was not aware of any medical concerns that Wilson had
prior to the call as well. RN Markwardt was highly appreciative of the actions
taken by MCS0 staff and praised their response during the ¢all. Tt should be
noted that RN Markwardts actions were confirmed via video surveillance along
with confirmation of the call she placed to the On Call Nurse Practitioner.
This concludes the gummary of the interview with EN Markwardt.

Summary of Interview with Correctional Officer Yeshiette Hamilton

C.0. Hamilton was interviewed next. The interview was conducted in the Jail
Administration Conference room located at the Milwaukee County Jail on the
morning of 08/30/17. The interview was recorded with permissicn from C.O.
Hamilton. C.0. Hamilton stated that she was working second ghift on 08/29/17
and was assigned to Pod 6B and had completed her final inspection of night when
she overheard the medical emergency call made by C.0. Jackson. C.0. Hamilton
stated she responded and stood by in case someone need to be *tapped ocut', she
described this as taking over for somecne who is tired or needs to be relieved.
C.0. Hamilton later relieved C.0. McBroom and held down Wilson's right arm.
During this time C.0. Hamilton stated she overheard Wilson make comments
referencing his "legs hurting" and he "felt like he was going to die". C(C.0.
Hamilton was "tapped ocut" a few minutes later and continued to chgerve while
staff treated Wilson. C.0. Hamilton cleared from this incident once Wilson was
taken from Pod 3B. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0O.
Hamilton.

Summary of interview with Lieutenant Michael Stevens

The interview was conducted in the Jail Administration Conference room and was
not recorded. Lt. Stevens stated he was assigned to second shift on 08/29/17
and was in the Operations Office working on paperwork when the original
emergency call was made. A short time later Lt. Stevens overheard a radio call
for "MFD to step it up". Lt. Stevens then looked on surveillance camera and
obgerved gtaff performing CPR on an inmate. Lt. Stevens responded to assist
with chest compressions before being relieved. Lt. Stevens had no further
invelvement in this incident. Thig concludes the summary of the interview with
Lt. Stevens. )

Summary of interview with Lieutenant Julie Shanahan

Lt. Shanahan stated that she responded to the Medical c¢linic after hearing a
request for additional staff to respond. Upon arrival Lt. Shanzhan completed
administrative duties, which consisted of gathering the appropriate paperwork
for an inmate being transported to the hospital, organizing staff to assist with
CPR, meeting and esgcorting the MFD, and had no "hands on" involvement in
Wilson's care. Thig concludes the summary of the interview with Lt. Shanahan.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Cory Jensen

The interview tock place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
reccrded. C.0. Jensen stated he is assigned to second shift and was working in
the booking area on 08/29/17. C.0. Jensen responded to the original emergency
call in Pod 3B and upen arrival assisted in securing Wilson's legs during the
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- initial assessment. C.0. Jensen then assisted in carrying Wilson down the
stairs from the upper tier to the lower tier. C.0. Jensen held Wilson's legs
during this time. Once they arrived in the clinic it was determined that Wilson
wag PNB and C.0. Jensen then assisted in performing CPR until the MFD arrived on
scene. C.0. Jensen had no further involvement in thig incident. This concludes
the summary of the interview with C.0. Jensen.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Trevor Trello

The interview took place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
recorded. C.C. Trello stated he was assigned to second shift 5th floor control
on 08/29/17. C.0. Trello stated he had no hands on involvement in the incident
but while observing on security surveillance cameras, did witness treatment
being provided to Wilgon., C.0. Trello then responded in case his assistance was
needed and escorted staff as they transported Wilson to the Medical Clinic.
C.0. Trello remained on scene while staff performed CPR in case he was needed to
assist but was cleared a short time later. C.0. Trello had no further
involvement or knowledge of this incident. This concludes the summary of the
interview with C.0. Trello.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Xiarri McBroom

The interview took place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
recorded. C.0. McBroom stated that he was assigned to second shift and was
assigned to Pod 3A on 08/29/17. TUpon hearing the original call for a medical
emergency he retrieved an AED and oxygen and responded to Pod 3B. C.0. McBroom
assisted in securing Wilson's arm zsince he was making violent wmovementg., C.0.
McBroom heard Wilson state he "couldn't breathe and was dying" and also that hig
(Wilson's) "legs hurt®. C.0. McBroom assisted in transporting Wilson to the
clinic and once they arrived in the clinic it appeared that Wilson was "losing
life" according to C.0. McBreoom. Staff then confirmed that Wilson was BENB and
began performing CPR. C.0. McBroom assisted in performing chest compressions
until he was later relieved. CC.0. McBroom stated he was “emotionally shook up"
and cleared form the incident after being relieved. €.0. McBroom had no further
inveolvement in the incident. This concludes the summary of the interview with
C.0. McBroom.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Michael Saporitc

The interview took place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
recorded. C.0. Saporitc was assigned to chserved inmate workers during his
assigned shift on 08/29/17. C.0. Saporitc responded to the original emergency
call in Pod 3B and upon arrival assisted in securing Wilson's legs during the
initial assessment. C.0. Saporito then assgisted with placing & RIP belt on
Wilson and observing staff before clearing the incident as Wilson wasg being
transported to the clinic. C.0. Saporito did recall hearingmwilson state hig
"legs hurt". C.0. Saporito had no further involvement in this incident.

This concliudes the summary of the interview with C.0. Saporito.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Gregory Walker

The interview toock place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
recorded. C.0. Walker was assigned to the 4th floor Movement Qfficer position
during his assigned shift on 08/29/17. C.0. Walker responded to the original
emergency call in Pod 2B and upon arrival assisted in securing Wilson's hands
utilizing the RIP belt. C.0. Walker recalls hearing Wilsen yell "oh my legs".
Prior teo transporting Wilson to the Medical clinic, C.0. Walker retrieved a wash
cloth from Wilgon's cell and soaked it with cool water and placed it on Wilson's
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head and neck area in an attempt to cool him down. During the transport to the
Medical c¢linie¢ Wilgon flinched and upon arrival in the clinic Wilson appeared to
go unresponsive. Once the RN confirmed Wilson was PNB, C.0. Walker assisted
with CPR. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Walker.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Rebecca Ehrman

The interview took place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
recorded. C.0. Ehrman was assigned to the position of Female Changeover Officer
during her assigned shift on 08/29/17. <C.0. Ehrman responded to the criginal
medical emergency call and recalls Wilson "thrashing around" after exiting his
cell. C.0. Ehrman recalls Wilson's behavior as bizarre and assisted in securing
Wilson's left hand while the RN was attempting to check on Wilson. During the
transport to the Medical Clinic she heard what she described as noisy breathing
coming from Wilson. Once they arrived in the clinic it was determined that
Wilson was PNB and C.0. Ehrman then assisted in performing CPR until the MFD
arrived on scene. C.0. Ehrman had no further involvement in this incident.

This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Ehrman.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Anthony Emanule

The interview took place in the Jail Administration conference room and was
recorded. C.0. Emanuele was involved in the booking process on Wilson on the
morning of 08/28/17 and recalled Wilson as being sare which Wilson verbally
informed him of while dressing Wilson in. <C.0. Emanuele had no further
information for the Detective. This concludes the summary of the interview with
€.0. Emanuele,

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Jacguise Payne

C.0. Payne stated he was monitoring a surveillance camera in the Special
Management Unit (SMU} on 08/29/17 when he observed staff responding to the
Medical Clinic. C.0. Payne stated he responded to the ¢linic to sgse if he could
assist and cbserved MFD actively performing CPR on an inmate. C.0. Payne atated
he assisted in removing the RIP Belt from around Wilson's waist and also held an
I.V. bag while the MFD continued CPR. C.0. Payne had no other involvement in
this incident. Thig concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Payne.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Andrew Hynst

C.0. Hynst stated that he was assigned to Pod 4D during his asgigned ghift on
08/29/17. C.0. Hynst stated staff were informed to stand by in roll call after
their assigned shifts in case they were needed to assist with the medical
emergency. At 2230 hours Lt. Shanahan requested additiomal Cfficers respond to
the clinic., C.0. Hynst responded and completed 4 rounds of chest compressions
before he was relieved. (.0. Hynst remained on scene until the MFD declared
Wilson deceased. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Hynst.

Summary of interview with Correctional Cfficer Samantha Taylor

The interview was conducted in the Jail Administration Conference room and was
not recorded. {.0. Taylor stated that she was assigned to the Mental Health
Unit on the 2nd floor of the MCJ on 2nd shift on 08/29/17. C.0, Taylor stated
that Lt. Shanahan had requested that staff stand by in roll call in case they
were needed to assist with the medical emergency. At 2235 hours, a request for
additional Officers was made and C.0. Taylor responded. C.0. Tayloxr stated that
staff was lined up to assist with performing chest compressions on an inmate.
C.0. Taylor stated that she performed 2 sets of compressions on the inmate.

C.0. Taylor took no further action in this incident, This concludes the
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summary of the interview with C.0. Taylor.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Amika Avery

The interview was conducted in the Jail Administration Conference rcoom and was
not recorded. C.0. Avery stated that she was assigned to position of
Break/Movemant Officer on second shift on 08/29%/17. C.0. Avery stated that she
did not hear the original emergency call but later learned of the incident from
other Correcticns Officers and responded to the clinic but was informed they had
enough staff on scene. A short time later €.0. Avery heard a radio call
requesting additional Officers to the Medical clinic and responded. C.0. Avery
stated that upen arrival she performed 70 chest compressicns on the inmate
before she became emotional and had to be relieved. Once relieved, C.0. Avery
cleared from the incident., C.0. Avery had no other involvement in this
incident. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Avery.

Ssummary of interview with Correctional Officer LaCinda Sloan
The interview was conducted in the Jail Administration Conference room and wag

not recorded. C.0. Sloan stated that she was assigned to Ped 3D on gecond shift

on 08/2%/17. C.0. Sloan observed staff transporting Wilson to the Medical
Clinic, but never heard the emergency call. C€.0. Sloan responded to the Medical
Clinic and observed staff enter the clinic and heard someone say call 911 and
start CPR. (.0. Sloan remained on scene for a short time before clearing
without taking any action. Thig concludes the summary of the interview with C.O.
Sloan.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Patrice Wright-Perry

The interview was conducted in an attorney cubicle located on the 6th floor of
the jail and was not recorded. C.0. Wright Perry stated she was assigned to Pod
5D on seccnd shift on 08/29/17. C.0. Wright-Perry did respond to a call for
assistance requesting additional Officers in the Medical Clinic. Upon arriwval
she observed staff performing CPR on an inmate and was instructed to clear from
the area. C.0. Wright-Perry had no further involvement in this incident.

This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Wright-Perry.

Summary of interview with Correcticnal Cfficer Devin 0O'Donnell

C.0. O'Ponnell stated that he was assigned to Pod 4B on second shift on
08/29/17. C.0. O'Donnell stated that upon hearing that an inmate was being
transported to the hospital he retrieved a '"hospital run kit" and responded to
the sally port. C.0. O0'Donnell then heard a radic call requesting additional
Officer's respond to the Medical Clinic. C€.0. O'Donnell resgponded and completed
"2 or 3" rotations of CPR. (.0. O'Donnell had no furthexr involvement in this
incident. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0., ¢'Donnell.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Brian Wenzel

C.C. Wenzel stated that he was working overtime in Photo ID on second shift on
08/28/17. C.0. Wenzel responded to a request for additicnal staff to respond to
the Medical Clinic and upon arrival completed "2 rounds of 60 compressions" of
CPR before clearing. C.0. Wenzel had no further involvement in this incident.
This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. Wenzel.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Dashyla Elliott

C.0. Blliott was assigned to third shift Jail records on 08/28/17. (.0. Elliott
responded to the Medical Clinic after hear a request for additional Officers to
respond. Upecn arrival, C.0. Elliott assisted with conducting 1 round of &0
chest compressions and cleared from the incident. C.0. Elliott had no further
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invelvement in this incident. This concludes the summary of the interview with
C.0. Elliott.

Summary cf interview with Correctional Cfficer Shondel Thompson

C.0. Thompson stated that she was assigned to 3rd floor control on second shift
on 08/23%/17. (C.0. Thompson stated that C.0. Jackson exited her pod and was
completing paperwork and was out of her pod for "10-20 minutes, maybe 30" but
wasn't sure. C.0. Thompson did not recall having control of C.0. Jacksons pod
when she exited out of it, but did go over the security procedure of
transferring control of a pod with Det. Donner. C.0. Thompson did not have any
hands on involvement or further knowledge of this incident. This concludes the
summary of the interview with C.0. Thompson.

Summary of interview with Correctional Officer Matthew McCoy

C.0. MaCoy was working overtime on second shift in a Movement position on
08/29/17 when he heard the emergency c¢all in Pod 3B, C.0. McCoy arrived but
when asked if he had been "working for 16 hours® by Lt. Haw, he replied he had
and was directed to clear by Lt. Haw. C.0. McCoy had no further involvement in
this incident. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.0. McCoy.

Summary of interview with RN Sheba Lopez

RN Lopez stated that she was assigned tc the Booking area on the evening of
08/29/17 when she heard about the incident. RN Lopez proceeded to the Medical
Clinic and observed the MFD working on an inmate. RN Lopez stated that she
spoke with RN Markwardt and began ensuring that the appropriate protocols were
being completed and took no action in Wilson's care. This concludes the summary
of the interview with RN Lopez.

Summary of Interview with Correcticonal Officer Benjamin Giege

On 09/19/17, Detective Hoppe and Detective Wepfer interviewed C.0. {iese in an
attempt to clarify the statements made by two inmates that Wilson was suffering
from medical issues on his shift, 0600-143C on 08/29/17. The interview was
conducted in the Jail Administration Conference room located at the Milwaukee
County Jail. The intexview wag recorded with permission from C.0. Giese. C.O.
Giese went over his routine for a regular shift in a pod and afterwards was .
asked if he remembered anything about the events on 08/29/17 or if he remembered
Clarence Wilson. C.0. Giese stated that he did not remember Wilson, and did not
recall anything specific or out of the ordinary on that day. When asked if he
remembered having any medical emergency or other significant issues in a pod,
C.0. Glese referenced having medical emergency several weeks prior in Pod 4C.
C.0. Giege went over hils guidelines for calling any emergency and stated that
chest pain or trouble breathing would be cause for an immedizte medical
emergency. I then asked C.0. Giese if he had any problems in the pod on
08/29/17 since two inmates aileged that Wilson had fallen down and got taken out
of the pod, C.0. Giese stated that he never had any issues that he could recall
and his activity log, and surveillance videc appear to confirm that information
ag well. This concludes the summary of the interview with C.I. Gilese.

Summary of Pcd 3B Inmates Interviewed and Detective who conducted intexview

* Hirberto Rosa Cell #1- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Vaughn T. Hudson Cell #2- Det. O'Toocle WKSQO
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-Stated he did not see ox hear anything.

* Tevin M. Sample Cell #3- Det. 0'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not gee or hear anything.

* Carlog O, Vera Cell #3- Debt. 0'Tocle WKSQ
-Stated he heard inmates yelling and banging saying he need help, he's dying.

* T,aghawn L, Latgon Cell #4- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Jogeph Williams Cell #4- Det. O*Toole WKSO
-8tated he did nct see or hear anything.

* Kejuan 8. Smith Cell #5- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Dennis E. Avant Cell #5- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Trevor Burns Cell §6- Det. O'Tocle WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Yavier O. Brown Cell #6- Det. O'Toocle WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Ladenoven R. Brown CELL #7- Det. C'Toole WKSO
-8tated he heard inmates yelling and banging but was unaware of why they were
doing it.

* Steven J. Kallas Cell #8- Det. O'Toole WKSO

-Heard inmates banging cell doors and he pressed his intercom with no response,
also alleges witnessing Wilson fall in front of the Pod C.0. on dayshift,

Kallas describes an incident he bhelieved occurred the day before where there may
have been a fight in the pod because it was chaos and one person got taken away
in handcuffs. Kallas was not very detailed in that information and based on,
video surveillance, statements made by other inmates, and the statement by C.O.
Giese, it is not believed that Wilson was the inmate who had been removed from
Pod 3B on 08/28/17.

* Nicholas Santana Cell #8- Det. 0'Tccle WKSO

~Heard inmates banging cell doors and he pressed his intercom with no response,
also alleges observing Wilsen fall in front of the Pod C.0. on dayshift.
Nicholas then referred to the incident that Kallas spocke of and stated that
*dude got back in the pod in the morning". Nicholas seemed confused about the
information and did not appear to have his facts straight regarding the events
of 08/28/17.

* Joseph P. Hirschman Cell #9- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-8tated he did not see cor hear anything.

* Darrell J. Kemp Cell #10- Det. 0O*Toole WKSC
-8tated he heard and saw other inmates banging their cell doors and heard some
inmates say he needs help this dude is dying.

* Shawn D, Karol Cell #10- Det. O'Toole WKSO
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-Stated he heard and saw other inmates banging their cell doors and heard some
inmates say he needs help this dude is dying.

* Jarvis T. Neely Cell #11- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he heard and saw other inmates banging their cell doors and yelling for
help for the old guy in 43.

* Dustin B. Crego Cell #11- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-8tated he heard and saw other inmates banging their cell doors and velling for
help for the old guy in 43.

* Jonathan J. Knight Cell #12- Det. O'Tocle WKSO
~Stated ne did not see or hear anything.

* Jogeph L. Thomas Cell #12- Det, O'Toole WKSO
~Stated he did not sgee or hear anything,

* Nicholas 8. Maslowski Cell #13- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he heard cother inmates banging and velling and attempted to activate his
emergency alarm to alert staff.

* Demontae Robinson Cell #13- Det. 0'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Oshay D. McDonald Cell #14- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Chevalier Armstrong Cell #14- Det. 0O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Orlando L. Walker Cell #15- Det. O'Tcole WKSO
-8tated he heard inmates banging and velling but could not hear what they were
saying.

* Nicholas D. Ashford- Det. O'Toocle WKSO
-8tated he did not see or hear anyvthing.

* Kevin B. Walter cell #16- Det. 0O*Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Abraham I. Galvan Cell #16- Det. O'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Shadon I.. Johnson Cell #17- Det. C'Toole WKSO
~Stated he did not see hear anything.

* Patrick L. McNeil Cell #17- Det., O'Toole WKSO
~8tated he did not see hear anything.

* Deronte A. Polk cell #18- Det. 0'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see hear anything.

* Kenneth L. Quinn-Jonesg- Det. 0'Toole WKSO
-Stated he did not see hear anything.

* George Nance Cell #1%- Det. O'Toole WKSO
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-Stated he did not see hear anything.

* John A. McMullen Cell #21- Det. O'Toole WKSC
-Stated he did not see hear anything.

* Robert E. Walton Cell #22- Det. O'Toole WKSC
-8tated he d4id not see hear anything.

* Mark Gransberry Cell #23- Det. 0'Toole WKSO
~-8tated he did not see hear anything.

* Kevin B, Blackburn Cell #24- Det. O'Toocle WKSO
-8tated he did not really see anything but did hear banging and screaming and
something about the dude in 43 or 44.

* @Gilbert L. Vazguez Cell #25- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Stated he did not hear or see anything.

* Refugioc Salcedo Cell #26- Det. Jensen WKSO
-3tated the inmate distress light was on fcor 30 minutes and nobedy came alsco
stated ask the Officer for further details.

* James R. Barlow Cell #27- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Only observed Wilson being removed from the cell.

* Trequis L. Fields Cell #28- Det. Jensen WKSO

-Stated he cbserved Wilson fall out of the cell when it was opened and also
obgerved staff render aid to Wilgson. Fields® statement is consistent with the
regt of the information that was learned in interviews with the sgtaff.  Fields
did state that he never heard Wilson but could hear staff telling Wilson teo
fstop moving" when they were providing aid.

* Jacob L. Briggs Cell #295- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Heard inmates yell that the individual in 43 was dying. Heard every inmate in
the pod banging on their cell doors.

* Timothy L. Litt Cell #30- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Sckuyler A. Elim Cell #31- Det. Jensen WKSO
-8tated he did not see or hear anything.

* Andrew L. Hawkins Cell #32- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Stated he did not see or hear anything.

* Timothy D. Backstrom Cell #34- Det. Jensgen WKSO
-Stated he heard inmates banging on their doors and observed 43 fall out the
cell once the door was opened.

* Willie B. Fuller Cell #35- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Reported other individuals stating something was going with the cccupant in 43,
no other infermation to report.

* Marcus P, Newsome Cell #36- Det. Jensen WKSO
-8tated he had his radio and headphones on and didn't see anything but heard
other inmates yelliing.
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* Adrian Combs Cell #37- Det. Jensen WKSC
-8tated he was sleeping at the time but was woken up by inmates banging, no
other information.

* Kenneth J. Cook #38- Det. Jensen WKSO

-8tated he cbserved Wilson breathing hard and heard Wilson state he "couldn't
breathe", Confirmed other inmates along with himself were pushing their
emergency intercoms and banging on doors.

* Deghawn D. Nabors Cell #39- Det. Jensen WKSO

~-Stated he heard the inmate in cell 43 c¢all for help and coughing, he also
attempted to activate his emergency intercom. Nabors further reported that all
inmates in the pod began kicking their docrs for 20 minutes in an attempt to
alert staff. Believes 30 minutes went by before C.0. Jackson returned to the
pod.

* Kenneth L. Riddle #40- Det. Jensen WKSO

-8tated he heard the inmate in cell 43 breathing hard and calling for help.
Stated inmates struck their doors for 20 minutes before C.0. Jackson returned to
the pod.

* Willie F. Helgeson Cell #41- Det. Jensen WSO

~Stated he heard the inmate in cell 43 gtate he was “dying® and calling out for
help and that he could not breathe. Reported inmates were striking their doors
for 20 minutes in an attempt to alert staff.

* Terrell D. Hall Cell #42- Det. Jensen WKSO
-Stated he was sleeping at the time and had nothing to report.

* Douglas Royster Cell #46 - Det., Jensen WKSO

-Knew Wilson personally and spoke with Wilson at length on 08/29/17 while in the
pod. Btated the last time he saw Wilson was for chow or dinner and that Wilson
geemed to be moving a little slow, which was unusual. Only complaint was that
he was sore and that he was possaibly sore from the altercation with the
Milwaukee Police Department. No other info other than hearing other inmates
bang on their cell dcooxs for 15-20 minutes before he cobserved staff enter the
pod.

* Michael D. Magssey Cell #47- Det. Jensen WKSO
-8tated it took forever for staff to respond, stated he heard from ancther
inmate (unidentified) that the guy next decor was dying.

* Pierre D. Thompson Cell #48- Det. Jensen WKSO

-8tated he heard another inmate tell everyone to hit their emergency intercoms
because dude was dying. No other information reported.

Summary of arrest, transport, and medical clearance of Wilson on 08/28/17 thru
08/29/19

Individuals interviewed regarding the arrest, transport and medical clearance of
Wilson:

* Milwaukee Police QOfficery Artavious Bradfozrd

* Milwaukee Police Officer Brian Flannery
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* Milwaukee Police Officer Jamar Lucky

* Probation and Parole Agent Heather Reihl-Vogel
* Probation and Parocle Agent Christy Mueller

* Curtis HMS staff member Wayne Stainbrook

* Curtis EMS Staff member Jeanette Volcensek

* Citizen Witness Anthony Prather

* Citizen Witness Kyle Haggerty

Arrest

On 08/28/17 at 2031 hours, Prcobation and Parole Agents Christy Mueller and
Heather Reihl-Vogel respeonded to 2642 N 9th Street in the City of Milwaukee in
an attempt to conduct a house check on Clarence Wilson. Reihl-Vogel and Mueller
are assigned to the Repeat Offender Prevention Enforcement (ROPE) Unit. City of
Milwaukee Police Officer Artavious Bradford was assigned to assist them in
conducting checks throughout the evening. Upon arriving at Wilson's residence,
a urine sample was obtained from Wilson which subsequently tested positive for
cocaine. Wilson was then taken into custody by Officer Bradford at 2046 hours.
After being handcuffed, Wilson became highly agitated and was slightly resistive
while awaiting a conveyance van to arrive. OQfficer Bradford then used his radio
to transmit te dispatch asking for “whoever is coming to step it up",
effectively requesting the conveyance van to regpond as soon as possible.
Officer Bradford used a minimal amount of force during this encounter and held
Wilson against a wall untii Wilson calmed down and was eventually placed on the
ground where he was still very argumentative but was not physically resistive.
During this time Wilson complained of arm pain related to the arrest and Officer
Bradford asked Wilson if he needed medical attention. Wilson replied "vyes" and
Officer Bradford contacted dispatch and requested EMS regpond for Wilson's
complaint of arm pain.

EMS assessment and transport for medical clearance

At 23105 hours Curtis EMS responded and while conducting their initial
assessment. Officer Bradford informed Curtis EMS personnel, Jeanette Volcensek
and Wayne Stainbroock, that Wilson had tested positive for cocaine and was
slightly resistive after being handcuffed. EMS felt that Wilson's "alertness
level" had diminished during their initial assessment and based on the alleged
cocaine use, per protocol, they issued Narcan for precautionary measures.

Wilson never lost consciousness during the incident according teo the parties
invelved, though it was documented that Wilson was verbally argumentative and
non-cooperative with EMS as well. Neither Volcensek nor Stainbrook had any
concerns about the situation and later transported Wilson to Columbia St. Mary's
Hospital per his request to be treated at a local hospital, where they arrived
at 2148 hours. During the transport, Milwaukee Police Officer Lamar Lucky rcde
in the ambulance with Wilsgon, while Milwaukee Police Officer Brian Flannery
followed in the conveyance van. It should be noted Officers Flannery and Lucky
had arrived-prior to EMS arriving on scene. After BMS cleared Officer Bradford
completed his assignment with Probation and Parole and cleared from the
incident, with Officer Flannery agreeing to complete the booking process of
Wilson and transport to the Milwaukee County jail after being medically cleared.
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Wilson was medically cleared from Columbia St. Mary's at 0025 hours on 08/29/17
and later transported to the Milwaukee Police Department District #3, where they
arrived at 0056 hours, for the booking process by Cfficers Flannery and Lucky.
After completion of the booking process Officers Flamnery and Lucky transported
Wilson tc the Milwaukee County Jail and turned Wilson over to jail staff without
incident. :

Surveillance footage

While reviewing the arrest, medical clearance, booking process, and transport to
the Milwaukee County jail surveillance video of the following cameras were
reviewed: -

Cfficer Bradford's body camera

Milwaukee Police Department District #3 Sally port
District #3 Fingerprint room

District #3 Booking area

Digtrict #3 Adult Cells holding area

* % Ok F ok

While reviewing the arrest video and conducting interviews with the parties
involved, it c¢learly shows that Wilson was argumentative with Preobation and
Parole and was placed into handcuffs, with his hands behind hig back. At cne
point Wilson attempts te jerk away from Officer Bradford and Officer Bradford
places Wilson against a wall in an attempt to control Wilscon. Officer Bradford
igs calm and in control cf the situation but does ask for the conveyance van to
*step it up" due to Wilson's behavior. Wilson is continually heard stating
"fuck me up” to Officer Bradford. The video does show Officer's Flannery and
Lucky arriving along with EMS and shows the interaction between all parties on
scene. At no time is there any force used against Wilson and it clearly shows
the Officers attempting to calm Wilson down. It should be noted that Officers
Flannery and Lucky had just begun their shift and heard Officer Bradford call
for them to *"step it up" and therefore did not have encugh time fto set up up
their Department issued body cameras, Cfficer Flannery indicated that the
battery for hig camera had not charged overnight as well. It was alsgo noted
that Officer Flannery stated that while their conveyance van had a squad mounted
camera, 1t was not functioning properly, due to a lack of an internet
connection. Officer Flannery stated that this is an ongoing issue. Cfficer
Flannery stated that nothing of significance occurred at the hospital during
medical clearance. Upon arriving at District #3, surveillance wvideo shows the
conveyance van arriving in the sally port and Wilson being escorted into the
facility. The surveilllance video at District #3 has audlc and while Wilson is
there, all of hig movements are recorded and later documented in the timeline in
the report. There is nothing notewcrthy noted during the review. The video
does end with the conveyance van exiting the sally port.

Interview of roommates of Wilson

Citizen Witnesses Anthony Prather (interviewed by WKSO Detectives Kohl and
Herrmann on 08/31/17 at 2644 N 9th Strxeet) and Kyle Haggerty (interviewed by
WKSO Detective Seitz on 08/3CG/17 at 2644 N 3th Street) were later interviewed in
regards to the arrest of Wilson. Prather stated that he was also tested by
Probation and Parole along with Haggerxrty prior to Wilson being tested. Prather
stated at some point he obsgerved the conveyance van arrive and shortly after, an
ambulance. Prather went on to state that he later observed Wilson being
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escorted from the residence in handcuffs and led to the ambulance. Prather did
not hear any arguing or fighting prior to Wilson being escorted to the ambulance
and it appeared to him that Wilson was being cooperative while being escorted.
Prather denies ever geeing Wilson interacting with Probation and Parole on the
evening of 08/28/17. Haggerty provided the szame information while being
interviewed except for adding that Wilson was walking with his usual limp or
gait while being escorted, but again that is normal for Wilson. Neither party
had any information directly related to the arrest of Wilson since they were in
a separate area of the residence at the time.

Medical Clearance at Columbia St. Mary*s Hospital

Medical records obtained from Ccolumbia St. Mary's Hospital by Detective Hoppe
via subpoena state Wilson presented with "LUE", which is Left Upper Extremity,
pain. Patient states he sustained the injury within the last hour due to
twisting when he was placed into custeody. Wilson informed medical staff that
the pain was a 5 on a scale of 1-10 and the pain was from his wrist to his
shoulder., Wilson also confirmed with staff that he had smoked crack cocaine
earlier in the evening. Wilson was given minimal treatment and could not
provide a urine sample to staff during his time at the hospital and also
admitted that he had not been taking his insulin since he had been released from
custody. Wilson was discharged in stable condition according to the discharge
summary and with instructicns on properly taking his prescribed medication.

Summary of the review of Wilson at the MCJ
Upon conducting the review of Wilson's incarceration at the MCJ the following
gsurveillance video was obtained and reviewed Detective O'Tocle:

MCJT Sally port MCJ Pre-Boock and search area
MCJ Bocking area

MCJ Pod 3B

MCI Pod 3B Vestibule Clinic

MCJ Pod 3B gym

MCJ Hall way from

MCJ 3rd floor elevatoeor camera to Pod 3B.

L A A B

During the review of the surveillance footage obtained from the MCJ, Wilson is
shown arriving in the sally port at 0200 hours and going to the pre-bocking and
search area. There is nothing significant noted during this periocd and Wilson
is showing to be interacting and does appear to be cooperative between 0204
hours and 0240 hours while he is in the pre-booking area. Wilson is then
observed in the booking area at 0424 hours where his is observed interacting
with other individuals and eventually transported to Pod 3B for housing on the
morning 08/2%/17. Wilson is observed interacting with inmates and wmoving around
in the pod and retrieving dinner. Wilson does have a noticeable limp but does
not appear to be in any distress. Wilson does not have any lgsues during the
lockdowns throughout the day and evening and does not make any phone calls which
was confirmed through jail inmate phone records. Wilson is observed locking in
for the evening and there is no other activity until C.0. Jackson is ocbserved
entering the pod and going to Wilson's cell which iz out of camera view at this
point. A short time later, the camera is panned towards Wilson's cell and the
door to the cell is opened a short time later. Wilson appears to stumble out of
hig c¢ell and lands on the floor in front of his cell where he is then tended by
Correctional staff as well asg the nurse.
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Jail calls

Recordings of jail calls from pod 3B were obtained and later reviewed by
Detectives Hoppe and O'Toole. It was determined through the Inmate calling
system that Wilson did not make any calls while he was incarcerated. While
reviewing the calls made by inmates in Pod 3B on 08/29/17, very few inmates
discuss the matter. The inmate in Cell #42, identified as Terrell Hall,
initially told Detectives he did not "see or hear anything" is overheard talking
about being traumatized and "expects to be paid". There is another conversation
in which inmate Marcus Newsome, assigned to cell #36, talks about contacting the
media because "the CO's didn't do nothing" to help Wilson which is clearly false
information. The remainder of the calls are consistent with the information
learned through the investigation and are not noteworthy.

Autopsy and Cause of Death

On 08/30/17 Detective Christopher Kohl attended the autopsy of Clarence Wilson
which was conducted at the Milwaukee County Medical Examiner's Office. The
preliminary cause of death was natural and related to heart disease. A final
report was conducted by the M.E.'s Office on 09/05/17 with the following ruling
noted:

Cause of Death: Acute Coronary artery thrombosis due to_

Other significant condition: Hypertension

Manner of Death: Natural
There was also a toxicology report that indicated there were metabolites for
cocaine in Wilgon's urine and blood which are indicative of cocaine use.

Relative Notification
* Alan T. Tallies- Uncle of Clarence Wilson
On the morning of 08/30/17, Detective Jensen and Detective Hoppe did meet with
Alan Tallies at his residence located at 3226 N 33rd Street in the City of
Milwaukee. Upon making contact with Tallies, we confirmed his relationship with
Wilson and informed Tallies that Wilson had been taken into custody on 08/28/17
and had a medical emergency while incarcerated at the Milwaukee County Jail. It
was further explained to Tallies that medical attention was given but Wilson had
passed away. Tallies stated that he was unaware that Wilson had been
incarcerated and seemed surprised since he had just been released from custody
on 08/18/17. Tallies stated that he wasn't surprised at Wilson's passing and
sald "it was probably because of his drug use". Tallies went to state that
wilson was 2| - 21so had

According to Tallies, Wilson would go weeks without taking his
prescribed medication even though he had the opportunity to obtain them.
Tallies identified Wilson's drug use as using marijuana and crack cocaine.
Tallies stated that Wilson has no other family or friends in the surrounding
area and he (Tallies) is the closest relative that Wilson had. Tallies appeared
to be emotional but cooperative and stated he had no doubt Wilson's passing was
related to his drug use. Contact information was provided to Tallies before
ending the interview.

Timeline of events from 08/28/17-08/29/17 (Hours in Military time)

08/28/17
* 2046- Time of Arrest 2642 N 9th Street Milwaukee, WI 53210.
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_ % 2105- Curtis EMS arrives.
* 2149- Aryives at Columbia S8t. Mary's Hospital.
* 2209~ Registered in ER.

08/29/17

0025~ Discharged from Columbia St. Mary's Hospital.
0056- Arrives in Sally port at District #3.

0059- Enters Booking area.

0107- Enters Fingerprint room.

0113- Exits fingerprint room.

0120~ Placed in helding cell while Officer's deal with ancther inmate
0143~ Exits cell,

0l46- Exits District #3 and enters sally port into conveyance van.
0148- Conveyance van exits sally port.

0200- Arrives at the Milwaukee County Jail.

0204- Entering through the Pre Beoking area.

0240- Exits the Pre Booking area.

0241- Enters the Search room.

0244~ Exits the gearch room.

0424- Entered Booking area.

1025- Entering 3B entry Hallway, elevator and 3rd floor,
1025- Enters Pod 3B.

1046~ Pod locked in.

1115- C.0. Giese exits Pcd.

1145- C.0. Giese returns to pod.

1215~ Lunch and Pod opened.

1353- Pod locked in.

1459~ Pod opened.

1509~ Sits down in dayroom.

1757- Pod locked in.

1802- Pod opened.

2059~ Pod locked in.

2126- C.0. Jackson exits pod.

2155- C.0. Jackson enters pod.

2156- Call for Medical Emergency.

2157- See Wilson's arm and head enter screen.

2210- Remcved from Pod 3B and being transported to Medical Clinic.
2211- Cbserved in 3RD Floor Elevator.

2212~ Arriveg in Medical Clinic.

2213- C.0. observed looking for a pulse.

2213- CPR Begins.

2215- MFD arrives and continue rescue efforts.

2255~ Rescue efforts ceasge.

2301- Wilson covered with sheet.
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Milwaukee County Jail AED Download

The AED that was used by Correctional Staff was collected as evidence on the
morning of 08/30/17. On 09/05/17 the AED was removed from Property Inventory by
Captain Patrick Esser and Detective Hoppe. The AED was then taken to the
Milwaukee County EMS Offices by Detective Hoppe and Detective Herrmann in an
attempt to download the recordings that were captured during the attempted
resuscitation efforts of Wilson by Correctional Staff on 08/2%/17. The AED wasg
downloaded by EMS Coordinator Marty Rukavina.
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Afterwards the AED was returned to Property Inventory and the results of the
download are as follows:

22:15:06- Electrcde pads placed on Wilson

22:15:17~ AED is analyzing Wilson per prompt

22:15:21- No shock advized prompt

22:15:23- Start CPR prompt

22:15:26- Push harder prompt

22:15:30- Good compressions prompt

22:16:10- Push harder prompt

22:16: 16~ Good compressions prompt

22:16:28- Cable unplugged prompt

22:16:37 thru 22:17:07 there 18 a prompt stating "continue CPR",

* % & £ ¥ ¥ % * F %

{It is at this time that the MFD arrived and began switching over equipment)
* 22:18:57- The device is turned off

Summary of re-Interview of Correcticnal Cfficer Cristal Jackson

On 09/27/17 Detective Hoppe and Detective O'Toole did conduct a brief follow-up
interview with C.0. Cristal Jackson at the Milwatkee County Jail. The interview
was recorded with C.0. Jackson's permission and wag conducted in a Conference
room of the Milwaukee County Sheriff'z Department administration area. During
the interview C.0O. Jackson was asked if she recalled anything since the first
time we had talked on the morning of 08/30/17. C.0. Jackson stated that ghe has
been thinking abkout the incident but did not have any new information to
provide. C.0. Jackson then gave a brief description of the events that occurred
that evening. I then informed C.0. Jackson that I wanted to clarify why she had
not transferred over control of her Pod to Floor Control when she exited. C.O.
Jackson admitted that she was very frustrated and felt rushed when the nurse
came into her pod after she had locked the pod down for the evening. C.0.
Jackson voiced her concerns for being a new C.0. and wanted tc turn her
paperwork in on time ag to not upset her bosses. C.0. Jackson became even more
frustrated when she received 5 new inmates at 2115 hours. After securing them
in their appropriate housing, C.0Q. Jackson wasg in a rush and inadvertently
exited the ped without turning over contrel of her pod te Floor Contrel. C.O.
Jackson appeared to very remorseful and stated that at ne time wag she nade
aware of any inmate in distress pricr to exiting her pod. C.0. Jacksoen
completed her paperwork and spoke with Officers ocutside of the pod prior Lo
entering her pod again at 2155. C.0. Jackson then repeated the version of
events she had supplied during her first interview. C.0. Jackson seemed very
nervous about the situation and was very apologetic during the interview. After
the recording had been shut off, C.0. Jackgon c¢ontinued to voice her concerns
for the family of Wilson. This concludes the summary of the re-interview with
C.0. Jackson.

Training records of Correctional Officer Cristal Jackson

Detective Hoppe did retrieve C.0. Jackson's training records and evaluations
during her training as a Corrections Officer. After reviewing the files, they
do indicate that there arve deficiencies that need improvement, such as;
monitoring inmates, updating activity log, and officer safety. The notations in
regards to security logs are relevant since C.0. Jackson admitted that she did
nct document the nurse exiting the Pod on the evening of 08/28/17. There are no
notations or evidence documenting any issues with computer programs which
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control the pod.security system., This would indicate that C.0. Jackson was
trained and aware of the proper procedure,. :

Facts and Summary of the investigation

On 08/28/17 Clarence Wilson wag arrested at his regidence after failing a
mandatory drug screen through Probation and Parcle, Wilgon wag taken into
custody by Officers from the Milwaukee Police Department, during the arrest
Wilson was argumentative and later complained of a sore shoulder and arm due to
attempting to jerk away from the Cfficer's grasp. EMS was called at the request
of Wilson, and responded. While EMS was evaluating, Wilson became lethargic
according to Curtis EMS personnel and was given narcan per their protocel, due
to his suspected drug (cocaine) use. Wilson then requegted to be seen at a
hospital for his arm pain and was subsequently transported to Columbia St.
Mary's EHospital for further treatment.

After being medically cleared from Columbia St. Mary's Hospital, Wilson wasg
transported to Milwaukee Pelice Department District #3 for booking purpcses.
Upon completion of the bocking process Wilson was transported to the Milwaukee
County Jail where Wilson was turned over to jail staff. Wilson was then
assigned to Pod 3B of the Milwaukee County Jail and placed into cell #43.
Wilscon does not appear to be in any distress and did not advise nursing staff of
any health concerns upon his arrival to the jail on 08/29/17. Wilson spent the
second half of dayshift in the Pod and was interacting with others and had
iunch. Wilson also interacted and had dinner during second shift and neither
C.0. Giese nor C.0. Jackson reported any concerns or behavicral issues with
Wilson during the ghifts on 08/29/17. Wilson's pod was locked in for the
evening on 08/29/17 at 2059 hours. The nurse entered the pod at 21060 hours and
conducted a medication pass. At 2115 hours 5 new inmates were assigned to the
pod and were placed into their assigned cells and entered into the gystem. C.O.
Jackson exited the ped at 2126 hours. At this point, per policy and procedure,
C.0, Jackson should have transferred over contrcel over her pod to Floor Control.
The purpose of completing this action is te ensure that in case there is an
emergency in the pod or an inmate has an emergency, Floor Control would be able
to answer any emergency intercom calls. C.C. Jackson exited her poed without
turning over control, which simply consists of her signing out of her Officer
Station terminal. This information was later confirmed with the Floor Control
Officer. C.0. Jackscn returned to her pod at 2156 hours and was immediately
notified by inmates that cell #43 was in trouble. C.0. Jackson immediately
regponded to Wilson'a cell and he advised her that he was having trouble
breathing and C.0. Jackson called for a medical emergency. As C.0. Jackson
returned to her Officer Station to let other officers in the pod, she realized
that her computer screen was "lit up" with inmate's emergency intercom alarms,
indicating that inmates had activated their emergency alarms in an attempt to
notify staff of the problems. When asked how many had activated their alarms,
C.0. Jacksgon stated "pretty much all of them”. That is when C.0. Jackson
realized she had not turned over control of the pod to floor control. ¢C.0.
Jackson was very honest about not turning over control. Based on statements and
video that was obtained, there is nothing to suggest that C.0. Jackson was aware
of any distress that Wilson may have been in prior to her exiting the pod. In
additicn, based on the statements of the pod inmates, which are very congistent,
it appears that Wilscn does not start suffering from his medical condition until
after C.Q. Jackson exited the pod.

Once MCSO and medical staff were on scene, Wilzon was treated and immediately
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transported te the medical clinic for further treatment with the expectation to
transport him to a hospital for advanced treatment. There did not appear to be
any delay in treatment for Wilsen after MCSO staff were made aware of Wilson's
medical emergency. The time from the coriginal medical emergency call, made by
C.0. Jackson, to the MFD arriving on scene was 19 minutes. Staff did not
hesitate to start CPR when it was determined that Wilson was PNB, and staff
attempted to use an AED during this time. -~ An autopsy revealed that Wilson's
death was natural and related to heart disease. '

There is no evidence of foul play and the only concern would be the fact that
even though C.0. Jackson knew she should have turned over control of her pod to
Floor Control, she did ncot. There is nothing to suggest that this was an
intentional act, as it appears that Wilson was not showing any signg of distress
prior to C.0. Jackson leaving the pod and C.C. Jackson admits she was in a rush
near the end of her shift. If C.0. Jackscn had in fact turned over control of
her ped as trained, it more than likely would have meant a more timely response
to the activation of emergency intercom calls. I am asking for the case to be
reviewed by the Milwaukee County District Attorney's Office to determine if this
incident would meet the necessary requirements for C.0, Jackson to be charged
with a criminal violation of the Wisconsin State Statues.

Respectfully submitted,

Detective Aaron J. Hoppe #8459
Waukesha County Sheriff's Department
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